INCOME GENERATION SUBCOMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date:

Wednesday, 15th June, 2022

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Guildhall

INCOME GENERATION SUB-COMMITTEE
Information for Members of the Public
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street. The nearest car park is
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access
to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the
Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking
space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which
can be reached by using a lift. If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to
attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make
any necessary arrangements to assist your visit.
Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You have the right to inspect copies of
Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II
of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that
the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to
public inspection.
Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report
on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and
providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the
proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the
attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to
attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and
for any footage to be broadcast or published.
Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published
on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the
meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will
be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the
Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if
in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider
that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the
Agenda. Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day
before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below.
If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background
papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs,
film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services
Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY. Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:
committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic
minority languages. Please contact the above named officer for further information.
Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available
electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address:
worcester.gov.uk

2

Income Generation Sub-Committee
Wednesday, 15 June 2022
Members of the Committee:-

Chair: Councillor Jabbar Riaz (L)
Vice-Chair: Councillor Steve Mackay (C)
Councillor Jill Desayrah (L)
Councillor Chris Mitchell (C)
C= Conservative

Councillor Louis Stephen (G)

G = Green
L = Labour
LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA
Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)
1.

Appointment of Substitutes
To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a
Member of the Sub-Committee.

2.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest.

3.

Public Participation
Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the SubCommittee.

4.

Minutes
Page(s): 1 - 4
Of the meeting held on 9th March 2022 to be approved and signed.

5.

Bereavement Services
Page(s): 5 - 10
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance
Tel: 01905 722007
That the Sub-Committee note the progress made by Bereavement Services in
enhancing the service provided to customers.

6.

Local Authority Housing Development Company
Page(s): 11 - 14
Ward(s): All Wards

3

Contact Officer:

Shane Flynn, Corporate Director, Finance and Resources
Tel: 01905 722536

That the Sub-Committee note the report of ARK consultancy on options for
Council-Led Housing Development and the potential for a Housing Development
Company as an appropriate vehicle for progressing these option.
7.

Annual And Quarter 4 Performance Report For 2021/22
Page(s): 15 - 28
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer
Tel: 01905 722407
That the Sub-Committee note the Council’s annual and quarter 4 performance for
2021/22.

8.

Any Other Business
Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant
consideration.
PART II
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)

9.

Items Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information
The Sub-Committee are invited to pass the following resolution:
That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of information as defined in
Schedule 12A of the said Act.

10.

Minutes (Exempt Items)
Page(s): 29 - 30
Of the meeting held on 9th March 2022 to be approved and signed.

4

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

INCOME GENERATION SUB-COMMITTEE
9th March 2022
Present:

Councillor Steve Mackay in the Chair
Councillors Riaz (Vice-Chair), Stafford and
Stephen

38

Officers:

Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance
Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance
and Resources
Kevin Moore, Head of Property Services

Apologies:

Councillor Mitchell

Appointment of Substitutes
None.

39

Declarations of Interest
None.

40

Public Participation
None.

41

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 2nd February 2022 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

42

Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard For 2022/23
The Sub-Committee considered the proposed content of the Income Generation
Performance Scorecard for 2022/23. The Head of Finance presented the report
and explained that proposed income targets have been established in line with the
budget agreed by Council at the meeting on 22nd February. The target for
property investment income had been re-aligned to reflect income from all the
Council’s current property, and would be amended should there be any new
property acquisitions during the forthcoming year.
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee agree the proposed content of the
Income Generation Performance Scorecard for 2022/23.

43

Football Facilities At Perdiswell
The Sub-Committee considered a report on the outcome of the work
commissioned from Raise Partnership to review the costings of the proposed
Futsal and football pitch developments at Perdiswell which had first been
considered in July 2018. The Corporate Director – Finance and Resources
presented the report and explained that the work had been undertaken to
establish whether the schemes remain finically viable.

Page 2
9th March 2022

2

The report prepared by Raise Partnership was confidential on the basis that it
includes information of a commercially sensitive nature. In summary, it concluded
that both the All-Weather Pitch and Futsal schemes do remain financially viable,
although the former is dependent upon receipt of a grant from the Football
Foundation. Surplus income derived from the facility would need to be ring-fenced
to it for future maintenance and re-provision. A report will be prepared for the
Communities Committee to consider proposals for taking this scheme forward.
Whilst the Futsal scheme would still be viable, the capital costs had risen from an
estimated £2.9m to £3.4m. In the event that these were met in full from
borrowing, this would give rise to an annual cost of approximately £133,000 at
current PWLB rates.
Since the 2018 report, the existing five-a-side pitches adjacent to the Leisure
Centre had been brought back into use and further consideration was required as
to whether the conversion of the facilities to a Futsal stadium was the most costeffective use of the site, or whether the addition of further five-a-side pitches
would be represent a better alternative in terms of value-for-money.
Information about the use of the refurbished pitches was currently limited as
leisure activities had not returned to pre-Covid activity levels. However, there
would be additional capital costs over and above those identified in the
confidential annex to the report, due to the five-a-side pitches having been
refurbished. The latter work was undertaken and funded by Freedom Leisure on
the grounds that it receives the income from the pitches. A sliding scale of
compensation was agreed in the event that the pitches were replaced in future.
In the circumstances, it was recommended that an assessment be undertaken of
the alternative use of the land available for a Futsal facility as additional five-aside pitches.
The Corporate Director responded to questions from Sub-Committee Members.
In the ensuing discussion, the following main points were made:


The Corporate Director explained that the Futsal facility could be used for
other sports.



The Corporate Director explained that that five-a-side pitches had been
refurbished as they were falling into disrepair and there was an opportunity
to bring them back into use in order to support Freedom leisure’s Covid
recovery. There was provision to pull back from that position should the
Council wish to look to re-develop the site, but as Freedom Leisure had
funded the refurbishment they would need to be compensated.



The development of an all-weather pitch would fall within the remit of sport
and leisure provision rather than income generation and would therefore be
a matter for Communities Committee to consider.

In conclusion, Sub-Committee Members agreed that an assessment of the
alternative use of the land available for a Futsal facility as additional five-a-side
pitches was the appropriate way forward.

Page 3
9th March 2022

3

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note updated cost models for Futsal
and pitch developments at Perdiswell and agree to receive a further
report on the creation of new five-a-side pitches adjacent to Perdiswell
Leisure Centre.
44

Any Other Business
None.

45

Items Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act.

46

Minutes (Exempt Items)
RESOLVED: That the minutes (exempt items) of the meeting held on 2nd
February 2022 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

47

Football Facilities at Perdiswell
The Sub-Committee noted the report from Raise Partnership provided at Annex 1
to agenda item 6. This report was confidential on the basis that it includes
information of a commercially sensitive nature.

48

Development Fund Proposal
The Sub-Committee considered the revised financial assessment of a proposal.
The Sub-Committee concluded that reconsideration of the proposed development
should proceed, based on the information provided. This report was confidential
on the basis that it includes information of a commercially sensitive nature.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 7.39p.m.

Chair at the meeting on
15th June 2022

Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 15th June 2022
Report of: Head of Finance

Subject:

BEREAVEMENT SERVICES

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Sub-Committee note the progress made by Bereavement Services
in enhancing the service provided to customers.

2.

Background

2.1

The City Council Bereavement Service offers a cremation service at Astwood
crematorium and burials at Astwood and St Johns cemeteries. The crematorium was
refurbished in 2015 and performs approximately 2,000 cremations per annum and
serves customers from both the city and outlying areas.

2.2

In 2018/19 the Service generated income of £2.0m. However, following the opening
of the new crematorium at Fladbury, the number of funerals held by the City Council
reduced and the income generated fell to £1.5m.

2.3

The Covid-19 pandemic had a significant effect on the Service, causing an increase
in the number of funerals and also restricting the number of mourners able to
attend. The graph below shows the number of funerals held each month from
January 2018 to April 2022. The spikes in April 2020 and January 2021 correspond
with the periods of national lockdown when the pandemic was at its height.

Monthly number of funerals

100%

80%
70%

400

60%
300

50%
40%

200

30%
20%

100

10%

Mar

Nov

Sep

Jan-22

Total Funerals held

Jul

Mar

May

Nov

Sep

Jul

Jan-21

Deaths in South Worcs.

May

Mar

Nov

Jul

Sep

May

Mar

Jan-20

Direct Cremations

Jan-19

Sep

Nov

Jul

May

0%

Mar

0

% of South Worcs

% of South Worcs Deaths

90%
500

Jan-18

Number of Funerals / Deaths

600

Page 6

2.4

The Bereavement Service responded to the increased number of funerals brought on
by the pandemic by the reducing the length of funeral services from 45 to 30
minutes and lowering the charges accordingly.

2.5

With the exception of the pandemic, the number of deaths in south Worcestershire
has remained fairly constant over the four-year period. However, the number of
funerals held at Astwood has declined, particularly since the opening at Fladbury.

2.6

The number and type of funerals held is shown in the table below.

2.7

Year

Full
Cremations

Cremation
only

Burials

Total

2017/18

2,329

0

212

2541

2018/19

2,238

567

89

2894

2019/20

1,503

334

109

1946

2020/21

1,368

763

126

2257

2021/22

1,229

401

79

1709

The trend for the income generated from Bereavement Services has been as follows:
Year

Income
£’000

Notes

2017/18

1,932

2018/19

2,022

2019/20

1,542

24% reduction following Fladbury opening in Dec 2018

2020/21

1,684

Affected by Covid-19 pandemic

2021/22

1,440

2022/23
Budget

1,609

2.8

The budgeted income for 2022/23 is based on the income levels recorded in 2019/20
and 2020/21. As this is greater than the actual income achieved in 2021/22, there is
a risk that there will be a shortfall come the end of the year.

3.

Information

3.1

A new Business Development Manager was appointed in Bereavement Services in
February 2020 with the aim of enhancing the Service’s offer.

Page 7

3.2

Previously information on the Council’s bereavement services was held on the City
Council’s website. However, in 2021 a new standalone website was launched.
https://www.worcestercemeteries.co.uk
This holds a wealth of information on the crematorium and the cemeteries to help
customers with planning a funeral. There are many high quality photographs of the
building and the surrounding gardens. In a typical month the website has over 2,800
visits.

3.3

Although funerals are arranged through a funeral director, families usually purchase
memorials directly. The City Council has sold memorials for several years, with
customers generally needing to visit the Astwood site to review the availability.
However, the range on offer is now shown on the website and can be ordered online.

3.4

The memorial offer has also been extended to include innovative ways of families
remembering their loved ones including bird baths, double heart shaped tablets,
boulders and others to broaden the offer.

3.5

Memorial income has grown in recent years and it is hoped that these new
developments will continue that trend.
Year

Memorial
Income £’000

2018/19

97.6

2019/20

103.4

2020/21

110.1

2021/22

116.9

Notes

Assisted by the launch of the new website

3.6

In late March 2022 the service launched its Covid related memorial the ‘Forget me
Not’ garden. So far it has seen over 100 individual notelets written and posted and
the wildflowers are nearing their first flowering which will captured for the website.

3.7

Volunteering has been introduced into the Service with several different groups
working on specific tasks. These include beekeepers and a group of ex-service
personnel who clean the military headstones and have provided additional data for
the website including a detailed bio of every military personnel member buried at
Astwood.

3.8

The service has seen several specialist burial services in the last few months
including ceremonies for the Plymouth Brethren , Baháʼí Faith, and 2 Muslim
services. The team are geared up to make adaptions and changes with immediate
effect to make sure people get the experience they desire from our service delivery.

3.9

Fees & Charges – In 2020/21 the fees and charges were completely overhauled with
a back to basics ground up approach that enabled a clear distinction between a new
memorial offer and the renewal of a memorial lease.

Page 8

Key charges were also frozen such as the full cremation fee at £822 making us very
competitive compared to the neighbouring private facilities. In the 2021/22 we only
applied a basic cost of living increase, keeping the key charges very competitive with
the other local crematoria.
3.10 A lot of time has been spent with the local Funeral Directors by the Bereavement
Business Manager to develop and improve relationships with the them as they hold a
lot of sway on which service/site is used. To this end the Funeral Directors waiting
room has been redecorated.
3.11 The service has seen a number of important changes in the last few months to
improve the public experience and also the environmental impact. These include:


Introduction of the first phase of electric equipment: 6 strimmer’s and 1 sit
down mower (removing the need for 2 stroke fuel along with it being safer
for staff to use and quieter)



New signage adding additional value to the visitor experience



Working with probation teams weekly helping maintain both sites



Resurfacing of the entrance and a section of the exit road along with the
visitor car park



New bike shed



Rewilding project backed up by a two-page news article and information
signs made by local environmental group.

3.12 Astwood Cemetery was assessed for a Green Flag award in the week commencing
16th May and the reception was very favourable with the results due to be announced
in July 2022.
3.13 Further improvements are planned including the following:


Picnic benches being added at key areas of Astwood – to further improve user
experience



Transport plan being drawn up and signage /website information to follow to
help visitors utilise existing transport options to access both sites



Electric charging points for Astwood



Phase 2 of electric equipment replacing final sit down mowers , removing all
fossil fuels small plant



New Artificial flowers in Astwood chapel



New full size Sign for the chapel overhang



New shower at Astwood



Reception redecorated



New Chapel carpets.

Page 9

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All
Mark Baldwin, email mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 15th June 2022
Report of: Corporate Director, Finance and Resources

Subject:
1.

LOCAL AUTHORITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

Recommendation
That the Sub-Committee:

1.1

Note the report of ARK consultancy on options for Council-Led Housing
Development and the potential for a Housing Development Company as an
appropriate vehicle for progressing these option.

2.

Background

2.1

At its meeting of 27 January 2021, the Communities Committee approved a proposal
to engage specialist housing advice on housing development in the City. The aim was
to help the Council identify how it can best intervene in the provision of social and
affordable housing within Worcester based on housing need.

2.2

The report to the Committee focused primarily on social and affordable housing and
set out proposals for work to be undertaken, as follows:
 To update and validate the current data on unmet need across particular social
and affordable housing types and client groups
 To explore whether any Council landholdings would lend themselves to housing
 To explore how the Council could secure new development sites or work with
partners in joint venture delivery arrangements
 To review best practice use of planning policy and other statutory powers to
increase supply
 To compare and contrast different local authority approaches to intervention and
delivery and related financial and risk implications.

2.3

Aligned to this work, and in particular strand 3 and 5, is the option to explore how
the Council can support the development of private sector housing and properties to
let at market rents. Such developments can also form part of wider mixed-use sites,
such as a combination of housing and retail assets.

2.4

At its meeting of 11 March 2021 this Committee resolved to request that the option
of establishing a Housing Development Company be considered as part of the
research.

Page 12

A Housing specialist organisation – ARK – were appointed to undertake the work and
the overall findings were presented to the Communities Committee on 8 June. The
findings of the research were to be reported to the Communities Committee and the
Income Generation Committee.
3.

ARK findings

3.1

The detailed work undertaken by ARK is set out in the report to the Communities
Committee. However, the overall conclusion in respect of a Housing Company is as
follows:

E) OTHER MAJOR INTERVENTIONS
Generally, ARK’s conclusion from our assignment is that the establishment of a wholly
owned company by WCC to support the development of new housing, including
affordable homes, is not appropriate. Such an approach would be very time-consuming,
resource intensive and be unlikely to add much to the delivery framework. However, we
do think that there is potential for WCC to establish JV arrangements with partners, in
some instances, to share risk and return and to bolster affordable housing production.
E1) ARK recommends that WCC opens dialogue with Sanctuary Housing about
the latter’s expressed interest in increasing its investment in Worcester and
especially in the city centre. Ultimately, ARK feels that this could, and
probably should, manifest itself in a specific JV arrangement where both
parties make a significant and broadly equivalent contribution to a
development proposal and where the returns are shared fairly. Ideally, the
returns should include good levels of affordable housing production. There
are major public procurement issues associated with a project based JV
arrangement and WCC will need to be cautious about procurement
implications as dialogue proceeds. Ideally, ARK believes that the scope of a
JV with Sanctuary should connect to city centre initiatives linked to Future
High Street funding.
E2) ARK recommends that JV approaches by the council be confined to projects
rather than programmes but that WCC is open-minded about JV approaches
to scheme development, especially where sites come forward via the new
dedicated land promotion function/vehicle or where the council might
consider infrastructure or site remediation investment as part of its JV
contribution. In ARK’s view, the council should be open to JV investment with
either private developers or RPs dependent on circumstances.
3.2

One of the key areas that Ark were asked to focus on was the potential for the
Council to become a direct developer of new homes either through use of its general
fund (not exceeding the Housing Revenue Account limit of 200 properties) or via
another vehicle.

3.3

It is quite clearly the case that the provision of affordable housing in isolation will not
provide a return on investment given the subsidy required to sell a home at below
market value given the upfront investment particularly in respect of land acquisition.
However, it is the case that, in mixed market models, profit from the sale of market
housing can be reinvested into the provision of affordable housing which requires
significant subsidies to make it viable.

Page 13

3.4

Pages 42 – 55 of the Ark Report go into further detail on such options, that would
take the Council into a new and different place in respect of housing delivery. It can
be seen, however, that the advice at this stage is that the Council should not
progress with developing a special purpose vehicle for direct housing production or
entering a long-term joint venture with a private developer or registered provider.

3.5

The main reasons for this relates to the limited scope for development within
Worcester due to space constraint and the lack of land within the Council’s ownership
that could be offered as a contribution to offset the Council’s costs in setting up
either venture. Furthermore, both options would likely require the Council to recruit
additional and specialist resources at a time when the medium-term financial plan
sets out the requirement to make significant annual savings.

4.

Preferred Option

4.1

To follow the advice by ARK and not to proceed to set up a Housing Development
Company at this stage but to continue to consider the appropriate vehicle as part of
the development of the Housing Enabling Strategy

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All Wards
Shane Flynn – Tel: 01905 722536, Email
shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk
Developing a Worcester CC Housing Enabling Strategy,
report to Communities Committee 8 June 2022
Worcester City Council - Council & Democracy - Agenda for
Communities Committee on Wednesday, 8th June, 2022, 7.00 pm

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 15th June 2022
Report of: Corporate Director, Finance & Resources

Subject:

ANNUAL AND QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2021/22

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Income Generation Sub-Committee note the Council’s annual and
quarter 4 performance for 2021/22.

2.

Performance Reporting Framework

2.1

A suite of Performance Scorecards have been developed providing a one page
overview of priority projects, activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) under
the functions of each committee.

2.2

The Scorecards are supported by a more detailed appendix providing a brief
narrative update for projects and activities and a visual representation of PIs in the
form of run graphs or charts as applicable. This provides context in terms of
progression, trends and seasonal variations to support reporting using RAG
assessments (Red, Amber or Green).

2.3

The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2021/22 with projects completed in the last
financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed by this committee.

2.4

The annual and quarter 4 performance report for the Income Generation SubCommittee is attached as Appendix 1.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All
Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer,
01905 722407,
Email: Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1

Page 18
Appendix 1
Income Generation Committee
Performance Report
Income Generation Projects and Actions 2021/22
Action Status
Cancelled
Overdue; Neglected
Unassigned; Check Progress
Not Started; In Progress; Assigned
Completed

Commercial Strategy delivery
Acquisition of properties under the FHSF, Towns Fund and
Arches projects is continuing and opportunities are also now
being considered as the Levelling Up Bid is developed. The
Shared Prosperity Fund will also be a new source of income
for the next three years but it is not yet understood what
additional costs will be required to meet the conditions of
that fund.
The Commercial Strategy was renewed in 2021/22 but
needs to be further developed away from income generation
as an activity to development of assets which can generate
income to cover costs and also to meet overheads. The
deadline for this project therefore needs to be reset to 31
March 2023 to enable this to be included in the Committee's
work programme.

Sponsor

Shane Flynn

Due Date

31-Mar-2022

Original Due
Date

31-Mar-2022

Current Status
Expected
Outcome

Income Strategy Delivery
While delivery against the income strategy continues to be
affected by the Covid disruption and wider economic impact,
such as reduction in car parking income, the budgets for
income have been reset to the full expected levels. Car park
income remains an area of risk as does income from the
leisure services contract, although the management fee for
2021/22 was largely recovered in full.
There is an income risk against the Angel Place market due
to disruption caused by a partial building collapse and
ongoing works and also further projected losses for
Perdiswell Leisure centre during the period of tile
replacement.
Business rates income is becoming the focus of wider
2

Sponsor

Shane Flynn

Due Date

31-Mar-2022

Original Due
Date

31-Mar-2021

Current Status
Expected
Outcome

Page 19

discussion as the High Street continues to face macroeconomic pressures. It has been confirmed that the
business rates reset will not take place this year and the
next revaluation is due in April 2024. The Council is likely,
therefore, to be able to rely on business rates growth until
that point.
The strategy itself was revised in 2021 and so the target
date for this project needs to be reset to 1 April 2024.
Progress against current plans will be reported through
these quarterly updates.
Sports facilities
The Council is still awaiting the request to draw down the
loan for the hockey centre which is in use but has not yet
reached formal practical completion stage.

Sponsor

Shane Flynn

Due Date

31-Dec-2021

Original Due
Date

31-Mar-2019

Sponsor

Lloyd Griffiths

Due Date

31-May-2022

Original Due
Date

31-May-2022

As agreed at the last meeting, the Communities Committee
is taking forward the work on the All Weather Pitch at
Current Status
Perdiswell proposal and a cost-benefit analysis is needed for
Expected
new five-a-side pitches adjacent to the leisure centre to
asses whether this is a viable option. A specification for that Outcome
work will be published in Q1 of the new financial year. The
target date therefore needs to be reset to 31 March 2023
for this project.
Development of Housing Enabling Strategy
Ark have concluded the review of Council Led Housing
Development/ Housing Enabling which will be reported back
to Communities Committee in June 2022 following the All
Member briefing on 25th May 2022. There are a number of
quick wins that Officers intend to progress with medium to
long term options to be built into a Worcester City Council
Housing Enabling Strategy that intends to be developed
subject to Member endorsement.

3

Current Status
Expected
Outcome

Page 20

Income Generation Key Performance Indicators - End of Year
2021/22
PI Status
Alert
Warning
OK
Unknown
Data Only

Riverside - project related income

Current
Quarter
Target

£10,000

Current
Quarter Value

£10,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

2020/21

£10,000

£10,000

2021/22

£10,000

£10,000

Status

4

Short Trend

Page 21

Guildhall - project related income

Current
Quarter
Target

£94,000

Current
Quarter Value

£63,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

2020/21

£5,000

£90,000

2021/22

£63,000

£94,000

Status

5

Short Trend

Page 22

Trade Waste collection - project related income

Current
Quarter
Target

£835,000

Current
Quarter Value

£725,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

Status

2020/21

£549,000

£808,000

2021/22

£725,000

£835,000

6

Short Trend

Page 23

Garden Waste collection - project related income

Current
Quarter
Target

£491,000

Current
Quarter Value

£542,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

Status

2020/21

£508,000

£469,000

2021/22

£542,000

£491,000

7

Short Trend

Page 24

Property Investment Fund - project related income

Current
Quarter
Target

£902,800

Current
Quarter Value

£891,644

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

Status

2020/21

£890,400

£902,800

2021/22

£891,644

£902,800

8

Short Trend

Page 25

Car Parks - income - key revenue streams

Current
Quarter
Target

£3,338,000

Current
Quarter Value

£2,702,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

Status

2020/21

£1,285,000

£3,338,000

2021/22

£2,702,000

£3,338,000

9

Short Trend

Page 26

Bereavement - income - key revenue streams

Current
Quarter
Target

£1,590,000

Current
Quarter Value

£1,488,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

Status

2020/21

£1,635,000

£1,720,000

2021/22

£1,488,000

£1,590,000

10

Short Trend

Page 27

Development Management - income - key revenue streams

Current
Quarter
Target

£709,000

Current
Quarter Value

£673,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

Status

2020/21

£641,000

£705,000

2021/22

£673,000

£709,000

11

Short Trend

Page 28

Neighbourhood - income - key revenue streams

Current
Quarter
Target

£181,000

Current
Quarter Value

£195,000

Aim to Maximise

Quarter RAG
Lead

Mark Baldwin

Annual
Value

Target

Status

2020/21

£246,000

£380,000

2021/22

£195,000

£181,000

12

Short Trend

Page 29
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 10

This page is intentionally left blank

